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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the members of GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of GMR Vemagiri Power
Generation Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in
Equityand the Statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information. (Hereinafter referred to as “Ind AS financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the possible effects of the matters described in the ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion” section of our
report, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 give the
information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
company as at 31st March, 2023, its loss including other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As disclosed in Note 28 A (ii) to the accompanying Ind AS financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2023 the Company has ceased operations and have been incurring losses with a
consequent erosion of net worth resulting from the unavailability of adequate supply of natural gas.
As disclosed in Note 36, the carrying value of the intangible and other assets is significantly
dependent on the achievement of key assumptions made in the valuation assessment by an external
expert around availability of natural gas, future tariff and realisation of claims for losses incurred in
earlier periods from the customer. Accordingly, we are unable to comment on the appropriateness
of the carrying value of the intangible and other assets of the Company as at March 31, 2023.

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rulesthereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
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obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements

Material Uncertainty Relating to Going Concern:

We draw attention to Note. 2.1 and 28 A (ii) to the accompanying Ind AS financial statements as at
March 31, 2023, which indicate that the Company has accumulated losses of Rs. 88,810.29 lakhs and its
net worth has been substantially eroded, the Company has incurred cash losses during the current and
previous years and the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs. 20,091.21 lakhs as
at March 31, 2023. Further as detailed in Note 28 to the accompanying Ind AS financial statements, the
Company has ceased operations currently on account of unavailability of adequate supply of natural
gas and is dependent on the parent company to provide support to meet its operational expenditure
and repay its liabilities. These events or conditions, along with others as set forth in the aforesaid note
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

Our opinion is not modified in this regard.

Emphasis of Matter :

We draw attention to the following matters In the Notes to the accompanying Ind AS financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2023.

1. Note no. 30(A)(c) relating to certain amounts due to suppliers towards procurement of
goods and services, which are outstanding beyond permissible time period under the
applicable regulations.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of the aforesaid matters.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the board report, but does not include the standalone Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The board report is expected to be made available
to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether
such other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone Ind AS financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibility of Management for Ind AS Financial Statements
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The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income / loss, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements, as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions,misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
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the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’'s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
ourknowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of changes in equity
dealt with by this Reports are in agreement with the books of account.
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(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone IND AS financial statements comply with the

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 as amended,

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 and

()

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B” to this report

(g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with

the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has paid remuneration to its managerial personnel during the year in accordance with the
provisions of and limits laid down under section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V to the
Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The company has disclosed the details and impact of pending litigations on the
financial position of the Company in its financial statements - Refer note 30 A & 36 to
the financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. A. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity (ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

B. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by
the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
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entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries, and

C. Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material
misstatement.

v. During the year, the Company, neither declared nor paid any dividend. Hence
reporting on compliance with provisions of section 123 of the Act does not arise.

(i) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 for maintaining the books of
accounts using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly,
reporting under rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable
for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

For GIRISH MURTHY&KUMAR
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 0009345

Digitally signed b
ACHYUTHAVE S0 T ravenKaTA

NKATA SATISH SsATISH KUMAR

KUMAR  Dienees
A.V. SATISH KUMAR
Partner

Membership number: 026526
UDIN No: 23026526BGXNZU6881

Place: Bangalore
Date: 03-05-2023
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” Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors” Report referred to in clause 1 of paragraph on the
‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date to the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023:

Re: GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited

I.  Inrespect of the Company’s Tangible assets & Intangible assets:

i

ii.

iv.

The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, plant & equipment and there are no
intangible assets held by the company during the year.

The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of Property, plant &
equipment in a phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, the Company
has carried out physical verification of assets during the year ended March 2021 and no
discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the title
deeds of all the immovable properties (including investment properties) held by the
Company (other than properties where the Company is a lessee) disclosed in the financial
statements are held in the name of the Company.

There is no revaluation done by the company of its property, plant and equipment
(including the right of use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

There are no proceedings that have been initiated or are pending against the company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.

I.  Inrespect of details of Company’s Inventory & Working capital:

i

III

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification There was
no inventory lying with third parties.

The company, during any point of time of the year, has not been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets.

a. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made

investment in or provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
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Iv.

any other parties as mentioned in notes to accounts note number 28 and 29 except the
following. The details of the same are given below:

Particulars Guarantees | Security Loans | Advances in
nature of
loans

Aggregate amount during the year | Nil Nil Nil Nil

Subsidiaries/ Fellow
Subsidiaries

Balance outstanding as at balance | Nil Land given as | Nil Nil

sheet date security against
Subsidiaries/ fellow loans taken by
Subsidiaries GWEL

. The investments made, guarantees provided, security given and terms and conditions

of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided
are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, the
schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the
repayments/receipts of principal and interest are regular wherever applicable.

. According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no amount which is

overdue for more than 90 days in respect of loans or advances in the nature of loans
granted to such companies, firms, LLPs or other parties.

The Company has not granted loan(s) or advance(s) in the nature of loan(s) which had
fallen due during the year and such loans or advances in the nature of loans were
renewed/extended during the year.

During the year, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of
loans, which are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of
repayment.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us the company
has not granted any loan, made any investments, gave any guarantee or provided security
in connection with a loan to any other body corporate or person in contravention of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,2013.

According to the information and explanation given to us the Company has not accepted
any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public within the
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meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not
applicable.

VI. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, related to the generation of electricity and are of the opinion that prima facie,
the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a
detailed examination of the same.

VII. In respect of Deposit of Statutory liabilities:

a. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues1 including
goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, , duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and
other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.
Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the
year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b. According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of income-tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and cess have not been deposited on account
of any dispute, are as follows;

Name of the | Nature of | Amount in | Period for which | Forum where

Statute dues Rs. Lakhs it relates to dispute is pending

The Customs Act, | Customs 5,910.57 | January 2004 to | Supreme Court of

1962 Duty September 2006. | India

Andhra Pradesh | Electricity 6,310,61 | September 2006 | Chief Electrical

Electricity Duty Act | Duty to March 2017 Inspectorate,

and Rules, 1939. Government of
Andhra Pradesh

VIII. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
company examined by us we have not come across any instances of any transactions
which are not recorded in the accounts that have been disclosed or surrendered before the
tax authorities as income during the year in the tax assessments under the income tax act,
1961.

IX.
a. Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by
the management, we are of the opinion that, the company has not defaulted in the
repayment of loans taken from lender & interest thereof during the year.
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b.

XI.

XII.

The company has not taken any loan from Government and the company has not
issued any debentures.

The company is not declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or any other lender.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money
raised by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were
obtained.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on
an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by
the Company on short term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on
an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations
of its subsidiaries, associates

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries,
joint ventures or associate companies.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

During the course of examination of the books and records of the company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we have not come across
any instance of fraud by the company or on the company by its officers or employees
of the company during the year. Further there were no whistle blower complaints
received during the year.

No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government
for the period covered by our audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and Explanations given to us, the

Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of the order is not
applicable.
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XIII.  According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

XIV. The company has an adequate internal audit system to commensurate with the size
and nature of its business and the reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under
audit were considered.

XV. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, we are of the opinion that that the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable.

XVI.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section
45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

XVIL. The company has incurred any cash losses of Rs. 18.55 Crs in the financial year and of
Rs. 25.03 Cr in the immediately preceding financial year.

XVIIL. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

XIX. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone?2 financial statements,
our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and management, we are of the
opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company
is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

XX.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not
fulfill the criteria as specified under section 135(1) of the Act read with the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, reporting under clause
(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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XXI. The reporting under clause (xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in
respect of said clause under this report.

For GIRISH MURTHY&KUMAR
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 0009345

Digitally signed b
ACHYUTHAVE ACgHtYUYI'HEVENKKTA

NKATA SATISH sATISH KUMAR
Date: 2023.05.03

KUMAR 21:48:33 +05'30"

A.V. SATISH KUMAR
Partner
Membership number: 026526

UDIN No: 23026526BGXNZU6881

Place: Bangalore
Date: 03-05-2023
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Annexure B to Auditors’ Report of even date

Report on the Internal Controls on Financial Controls under clause (i) of sub-section (3) of
section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GMR Vemagiri
Power Generation Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2023 in conjunction with our
audit of the Standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorization of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For GIRISH MURTHY&KUMAR
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 000934S

ACHYUTHAVENK

ATA SATISH 2&?{:4;‘2&;3;%;\ SATISH KUMAR
Date: 2023.05.03 21:49:00 +0530'

KUMAR

A.V. SATISH KUMAR

Partner

Membership number: 026526
UDIN: 23026526BGXNZU6881
Place: Bangalore

Date: 03-05-2023

4502, High point [V, 45, Palace Road. Bangalore-510 001, Ph: 223 81 473 / 9845255809



GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U23201KA1997PLC032964
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023

Notes Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Audited Audited
(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Assets
(1) Non-current assets
Property. plant and equipment 3 259.89 273.14
Capital Work in Progress -
Investment property - 25349 253.49
Intangible assets 5 28.615.09 33.135.80
Financial assets
(1) Other financial assets 6 69.73 63.51
Other non current asset 10 - -
Non-current tax assets (net) - -
29,198.20 33,725.94
(2) Current assets
Inventories 7 77.83 77.16
Financial assets
(1) Cash and cash equivalents 8 12.06 72.39
(11) Bank balances other than (ii) above 9 - -
(i) Other financial assets 6 22.87 3.67
Other current assets 10 202.18 60.30
314.94 213.52
Total assets (1) + (2) 29,513.14 33,939.46
Equity and liabilities
(1) Equity
Equity share capital 11 27.450.01 27.450.01
Other equity 12 (19.815.11) (15,273.97)
Total equity 7,634.90 12,176.04
Liabilities
(2) Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Net employee defined benefit liabilities 17(a) 66.79 -
Government grant 18 1.405.30 1.662.09
1,472.09 1,662.09
(3) Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 394.34 34233
(i) Trade payables 14
Total outstanding due to micro enterprises and small enterprises 129.34 121.70
Total outstanding due to creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 4.320.58 6,819.18
(111) Others financial liabilities 15 9.132.26 8,447.63
Government grant 18 256.75 256.75
Other current liabilities 16 2,750.53 2,795.52
Net employee defined benefit liabilities 17(a) - 1.58
Provisions 17(b) 3.361.87 1,286.21
Liabilities for current tax (net) 6048 3043
20.406.15 20,101.33
Total Liabilities 21,878.24 21,763.42
Total equity and liabilities (1) + (2) + (3) 29,513.14 33,939.46
22

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited

For Girish Murthy and Kumar
ICAI firm registration number: 000934S
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AV Satish Kumar
Nidhi Chandhok

Partner
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Chief Financial Officer
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GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U23201KA1997PLC032964
Profit and Loss Statement for the vear ended March 31, 2023

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total Income (1)

Expenses
Sub-contracting expenses

Consumption of stores and spares

Employee benefit expenses
Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Other expenses
Total expenses (I1)

(Loss)/profit before tax (I11=1-11)

Tax expenses (IV)
- Current tax

- Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods

- Deferred tax

(Loss)/ profit for the year (after tax) (V=I11-1V)

Other comprehensive income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Re-measurement gains / losses on defined benefit plans

(i1) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

(i1) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax (VI)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (VII=V+VI)

Earnings per equity share (nominal value of share Rs.10 each):

Basic and diluted (Rs.)

Summary of significant accounting policies

Notes March 31. 2023 March 31, 2022
Audited Audited

(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
19 115.68 115.68
20 1.060.51 324.52
1,176.19 440.20
574.91 531.34
3.83 2.95
21 366.65 416.84
22 842.19 842.73
23 4.527.09 4.562.87
24 1.185.11 1.142.13
7,499.78 7,498.86
(6,323.59) (7,058.66)

40.67 -
(6,364.26) (7,058.66)
(18.12) (7.68)
(18.12) (7.68)
(6,382.38) (7,066.34)
26 (2.32) (2.57)

2.2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Girish Murthy and Kumar
ICALI firm registration number: 000934S

Chartered Accountants

ACHYUTHAVE Digitally signed by
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SATISH Date: 2023.05.03
KUMAR 21:23:18 +05'30'

AV Satish Kumar
Partner
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Date: May 3. 2023
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Director
DIN: 03140784
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Date: May 3. 2023
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Director
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Company Secretary
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GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U23201KA1997PLC032964
Cash flow statement for the yeat ended on March 31, 2023

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

March 31,2023

March 31,2022

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(Loss) / profit before tax

Non-cash adjustments to reconcile (loss)/profit before tax to net cash flows:
Add: Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Adjustment in retained earnings

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods

Income trom government grants

Provision for doubtful advances / advances written off’

Finance costs

Interest income

Operating (loss) / profit before working capital changes

Working capital adjustments:

Increase in trade payables. provisions. other liabilities and other financial liabilities
Decrease / (Increase) in other assets and other financial assets

Decrease / (Increase) in inventories

Cash generated from / (used in) operations

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)

Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment including intangible assets
(Investments in) / Maturity of deposits for a period exceeding three months (net)
Interest received on bank deposit / others

Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital contribution from parent (net)
Repayment/Receipt of short term borrowings

Finance costs paid

Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Audited

Audited

(6.323.59)

(7.058.66)

4.53397 4.562.87
1.103.68 %
(4067) =

(256.80) (256.80)
(5.72) (32.99)
842.19 84273
(3.25) (3.32)
(150.19) (1,946.17)
(54.90) 1,126:52
(161.44) 56.13
(0.67) 0.59
(367.20) (762.93)
30.05 5.75
(337.15) (757.18)
- 0.95

311 3.91
3.11 4.86
737.56 931.35
52.01 (0.01)
(515.86) (182.02)
273.71 749.32
(60.33) (3.00)
72.39 7539
12.06 72.39

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Girish Murthy & Kumar
ICAI Firm Registration no : 0009348
Chartered Accountants
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GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U23201KA1997PLC032964
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Corporate information

GMR Vemagini Power Generation Limited (*GVPGL™ or “the Company’) is a public imited Company domiciled n India and 15 ncorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act applicable i India The registered office of the Company is located at Number 25/1. Skip House. Museum Road. Bangalore.
India

The Company 15 enga:

ved 1n the business of generation and sale of power

The Ind AS financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 3rd May.

2023

Significant accounting policies
The sigmficant accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its Ind AS financial statements are histed below Such accounting policies have
been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these Ind AS financial statements, unless otherwise indicated

Basis of preparation

The Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division 11 of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act.
2013. (Ind AS comphant Schedule 111)

The Ind AS financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and habihities. (refer accounting policy
regarding financial mstruments) which have been measured at fair value.

The functional and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee (“Rs”) which is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Company operates. All the values are rounded off to the nearest lakhs (INR 00,000) except when otherwise indicated

Going Concern

The Company has incurred net loss of Rs. 6,382.38 lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022: Rs. 7,066 34 lakhs) and has accumulated
losses of Rs. 88.810.29 as at March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022: Rs. 83,531.59 lakhs) and its current liabilities exceeded its current assets as at March 31, 2023 by
Rs. 20.091 21 lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs. 19,887 81 lakhs) as the Company has been facing shortage of natural gas supplies since commencement of operations
and has completely ceased operations since September 2016. The parent company has committed to provide necessary support to the Company as may be
required for the continuance of its normal business operations and repay its liabilities

(i) Ind AS 116 Leases

Ind AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17 Leases including its appendices (Appendix C of Ind AS 17 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease. Appendix
A of Ind AS 17 Operating Leases-Incentives and Appendix B of Ind AS 17 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease) The
standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise most leases on the
balance sheet

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 1s substantially unchanged from Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to classify leases as either operating or finance leases
using similar principles as in Ind AS 17. Therefore, Ind AS 116 does not have a material impact for leases where the Company is the lessor

The Company adopted Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective method of adoption, with the date of initial application on April 01, 2019 Under this
method, the standard 1s applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognised at the date of imitial application The
Company elected to use the transition practical expedient to not reassess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at April 01, 2019. Instead, the Company
applied the standard only to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying Ind AS 17 and Appendix C of Ind AS 17 at the date of initial application
The Company also elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement date, have a lease term of 12 months or less and do
not contain a purchase option (short-term leases), and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value (low-value assets) The adoption of Ind AS
116 had no impact on the Ind AS financial statements of the Company, where the Company is the lessee

Refer to Note 2 2 (i) Leases for the accounting policy

(ii) Appendix C to Ind AS 12 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The appendix addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the application of Ind AS 12 Income Taxes. It does
not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of Ind AS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with
uncertain tax treatments. The Appendix specifically addresses the following
-Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately
-The assumptions an entity makes about the exammation of tax treatments by taxation authorities

-How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss). tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates
-How an enuty considers changes in facts and circumstances
The Company determines whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or more other uncertain tax treatments and uses the
approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty
The Company applies significant judgement in 1dentifying uncertainties over income tax treatments These amendments had no impact on the Ind AS financial
statements of the Company

(iii) Amendments to Ind AS 109: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

Under Ind AS 109, a debt instrument can be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, provided that the contractual cash
flows are “solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding’ (the SPPI criterion) and the instrument is held within the appropriate
business model for that classification. The amendments to Ind AS 109 clarify that a financial asset passes the SPPI criterion regardless of an event or
circumstance that causes the early termination of the contract and irrespective of which party pays or receives reasonable compensation for the early termmation
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GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U23201KA1997PLC032964
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(iv) Amendments to Ind AS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments to Ind AS 19 address the accounting when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs during a reporung period The amendments
specify that when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs during the annual reporting persod. an enuty 1s required to determine the current service
cost for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement, using the actuanal assumpuions used to remeasure the net defined benefit
hability (asset) reflecung the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after that event. An entity 1s also required to determune the net mterest for the
remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement using the net defined benefit habihty (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the

plan and the plan assets after that event, and the discount rate used to remeasure that net defined benetit habihity (asset)

The amendments had no impact on the Ind AS financial statements of the Company as 1t did not have any plan amendments. curtailments, or settlements during
the period
Summary of significant accounting policies

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification. An asset 1s treated as current when 1tis
Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operatng cycle,

Held primarily for the purpose of trading,
Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a hability for at least twelve months afier the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current

A habihity 1s current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

It 1s due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the 1ssue of equity instruments do not affect its classification

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and hiabilities are classified as non-current assets and habihties

Advance tax paid is classified as non-current assets

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation 1 cash and cash equivalents The Company has identified
twelve months as its operating cycle

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date using valuauon techniques

Fair value 1s the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market parucipants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the hability takes place either

a)  Inthe principal market for the asset or hability, or

b)  Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or hability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or habihty, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s abihty to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable nputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and habilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy. described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or habilities
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that 1s significant to the fair value measurement 1s directly or mdirectly observable
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level mput that 1s significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Ind AS financial statements on a recurring basis. the Company deternunes whether transfers have occurred
berween levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant 1o the fair value measurement as a whole) at the

end of each reporting period

Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers 1s recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services

Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. taking into account contractually defined terms of pavment and excluding taxes
or duties collected on behalf of the government. The Company has concluded that 1t 1s the principal m all of 1ts revenue arrangements since it 1s the primary

obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and 1s also exposed to nventory and credit nisks

sed

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue 1s reci




GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U23201KA1997PLC032964
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Revenue from sale of enei

Revenue from sale of energy is recogmsed on an accrual basts in accordance with the provisions of the Power Purchase Agreement (‘PPA’) and includes unbilled
has been disclosed under "Other assets’ as unbilled revenue and billing in

revenue up to the end of the accountng year Revenue earned in excess of billi

excess of revenue has been disclosed under “Other habilities” as unearned revenue

Claims for delayed payment charges. hiquidated damages. penal mterest and any other claims. which the Company 1s entitled 10 under the PPA. are accounted for

n the year of acceptance

Revenue and cost of improvements to concession assets

The Company has entered mto PPA with APDISCOMS and TSDISCOMS (collecuvely ‘the grantors') for a capacity of 370 MW for a period of 23 years The
Company based on its internal assessment is of the view that the grantor controls or regulates to whom the Company should provide the services with its power
plant, the grantor controls or regulates the price at which the Company has to provide the electricity to the grantor and the grantor controls the residual interest in
the plant at the end of the arrangement’s term as per the terms of the said PPA

Further, as per the terms of the PPA. Company 1s ehgible to receive capacity charges under the PPA up to a PLF of 80% and is eligible for energy charges for the
actual supply of electricity. The Company 15 also ehaible for incenuves 1f the plant operates more than 80% of its capacity and is liable for disincentives if the
operation is less than 80% of the capacity. The operation of the power plant is dependent on the availability of the fuel which is the responsibihity of the Company
Accordingly, the Company has the night to charge the arantors for the electricity supplied and do not have the unconditional right to receive cash or other financial
assets from the grantors. The Company believes that the Concession Agreement is within the scope of Appendix D of Ind AS -115 'Service Concession
Arrangement' and shall be accounted for using the intangible asset model, wherein the service on assetisr ized as an i gible asset in accordance
with Ind AS 38 - Intangible Assets. The mtangible asset is amortized using the straight-line method over the life of the Concession Agreement as management

believes that straight-line method best reflects the pattern of consumption of the concession asset

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or
services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment of financial assets in section n) Financial instruments — initial

recognition and subsequent measurement

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that 1s unconditional (1.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the
consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section (n) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract labihties

A contract hability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised
when the payment 1s made or the payment 1s due (whichever 1s earlier). Contract habilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the

contract.

Income from land lease rental

Income from land lease rental 1s recognised as per the terms of the agreement on the basis of services rendered on a systematic basis.

Interest income

For all financial mstruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR 1s the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period. where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider
the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income n the statement of profit and loss

Taxes on income

Current income tax

Tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net
profit as reported in the statement of profit and loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductble Current income tax assets and habilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities. The Company’'s hability for current tax is calculated using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss 1s recogmsed outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Current tax items are recogmised i correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCT or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
i the tax returns with respect to situations i which apphicable tax regulations are subject to mterpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate
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Deferred tax

alues of assets and habilities in the Ind AS financial statements

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on difterences between the carnyng
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit and 1s accounted for using the balance sheet hability model Deferred 1ax habihnes
erences. In contrast. deferred assets are only recogmised to the extent that 1s probable that future taxable

are generally recogmised for all the taxable temporary di
profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised

Deferred tax assets are recogmzed for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses. to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences. and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses

can be utilized

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that 1t 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be uulized Unrecogmsed deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply n the year when the asset 1s realized or the hability 1s settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either m other comprehensive mcome or in equity). Deferred
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax ("MAT’) paid in accordance wath the tax laws in India, which 1s Iikely to give future economic benefits in
the form of availability of set off against future income tax hability. Accordingly, MAT is recogmzed as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can
be measured reliably, and it 1s probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realized

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost and is not depreciated. All other 1tems of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly aunibutable 1o the acquisition of the items.

PPE under installation or under construction as at balance sheet are shown as capital work-in-progress and the related advances are shown as capital advances

Capital work n progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under mstallation/under development as at the balance sheet date and 1s stated at cost less
accumulated impairment loss.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful
lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition
criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred The present value of the expected cost for the
decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met

Subseq costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate. only when it 1s probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the 1tem can be measured rehably. The carrying amount of any component accounted
for as a separate asset are derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss during the reporting period in which they

are incurred.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the component/ part has a cost which is significant to the total cost
of the asset having useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset. These components are depreciated over their useful lives; the remaining

asset is depreciated over the life of the principal asset

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows

Category of asset* Estimated useful life
Office equip ’s (including p equipment’s ) 3 to 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Vehicles 8- 10 years

* The Company, based on technical assessment made by the technical expert and management esimate. depreciates certain items of plant and equipment over
estimated useful lives which are different from the useful hife prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013

Further, the management has estimated the useful lives of asset individually costing Rs. 5,000 or less to be less than one year, whichever is lower than those
indicated in Schedule II. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets

are likely to be used

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property. plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively,
if appropnate.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part imitially recog 1 1s derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are

expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecogmition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) 1s included n the statement of profit and loss when the asset 1s derecognised
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Investment property

Investment properties are measured imually at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to imtial recogmition. investment properties are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any

dual values over thewr useful hives

Depreciation 1s recognised using straight line method so as to write off the cost of the mvestment property less their re
specified in Schedule 1T to the Companies Act, 2013, or in the case of assets where the useful hife was determined by technical evaluation. over the useful life so
determmed. Depreciation method s reviewed at each financial year end 1o reflect the exp d pattern of puion of the future benefits embodied m the
mvestment property. The estimated useful life and residual values are also reviewed at each financial year end and the effect of any change in the estimates of
useful life / residual value 1s accounted on prospective basis. Freehold land and properties under construction are not depreciated

Though the Company measures investment property using cost based measurement, the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair value is
determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit
15 expected from their disposal

The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recogmised i profit or loss 1n the period of derecognition

As at March 31, 2023, the Company only has land leased to one of its group companies as mvestment property

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any

The useful hves of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there 1s an indication that the ntangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period with the effect of any change in the estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Changes n the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of ption of future benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are
treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite hves is recognised 1n the statement of profit and loss unless
such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecogmsed

The Company has accounted the following under Intangible assets
Concession assets as detailed in point c. above.

The intangible asset is amortised over the shorter of the estimated period of future economic benefits which the intangible assets are expected to generate or the
concession period, from the date they are available for use.

An asset carried under arrang 1s der d on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its future use or disposal

The concession asset 15 amortized using the straight-line method over the life of the Concession Agreement ie., 23 years. The end date of the Concession

Agreement 1s September 15, 2029.

Other Intangible assets consist of computer software acquired separately and is measured on mtial recognition at cost. Following mitial recognition, it is carried at
cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity mcurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
mtended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset unuil such time as the assets are substanually ready for the intended use or sale. All other
borrowing costs are expensed n the period in which they occur

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That 1s, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified

asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases. except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognmition exemption to its short-term leases (1 e . those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office
equipment/prenuises that are considered to be low value Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operatung leases. Rental
income arising is acc d for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms (classified as accrued rental income in the Ind AS financial statements). Initial direct
costs ncurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same

basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue i the period in which they are earned
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Inventories

Components and stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of components and stores and spares 1s determined on a weighied
average basis

Self- g
measured at lower of cost and net realisable value

enerated certified emission reductions are recogmsed on grant of credit by United Nations Framework Convention on Chimate Change ("'UNFCC) and are

Net realisable value 1s the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business. less estimated costs of completion and the estmated costs necessary to make

the sale
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount 15 the higher of an asset’s or cash-
generatng umt’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount 1s determined for an mdividual asset. unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset 1s considered impaired and 1s written down to its recoverable amount

In assessing value m use, the estmated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that retlects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into
account If no such transactions can be 1dentified, an appropriate valuation model is used

The Company bases 1ts impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to
which the individual assets are allocated. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company
extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be jusufied. In any
case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country in which the Company operates, or for the market
n which the asset 1s used

Impairment losses of continuing operations. including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss

For all assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an mndication that previously recogmsed impairment losses no longer
exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recogmsed impairment loss 1s
reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recogmsed. The
reversal 1s hmited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been
deternuned, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised 1n the statement of profit and loss
unless the asset 1s carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase

When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it 1s probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement 1s recognised as a separate asset, but only when
the reimbursement 1s virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement

If the effect of the tme value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when approprate, the risks specific to the
hability When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of ime is recogmised as a finance cost

If the Company has a contract that 1s onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a provision. However, before a separate
provision for an onerous contract is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract.

An onerous contract 1s a contract under which the unavoidable costs (1.e., the costs that the Company cannot avoid because 1t has the contract) of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under 1t. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of
exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling 1t and any compensation or penalties anising from failure to fulfil it The cost of fulfilling a
contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract (1.e , both ncremental costs and an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities)

A contingent hability 15 a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertan future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that 1s not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recogmzed because it
cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the Ind AS financial statements

Provisions and contingent liabihty are reviewed at each balance sheet

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund. pension fund and superannuation fund are defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other
than the contribution payable The Company recognizes contribution payable to provident fund, pension fund and superannuation fund as expenditure. when an
emplovee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet reporung date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a hability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already
pard exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recogmzed as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will
lead to, for example. a reduction in future payment or a cash refund
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The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan n India, which requires contributions to be made 1o a separately admimmstered fund The cost of providing
benefits under the defined benefit plan i1s determined using the projected unit credit method using actuarial valuation to be carried out at cach balance sheet date

In case of funded plans, the fair value of the plan assets 1s reduced from the gross obligation under the defined benefit plans to recogruse the obhgation on a net
basis

Re-measurements. comprising of actuanal gamns and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts ncluded m net mierest on the net defined benefit
hability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit hability), are recognised immediately m the balance
sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period i which they occur Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or

loss m subsequent periods

Past service costs are recogmised n profit or loss on the earlier of
a The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

b The date that the Company recogmises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the net
defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss

a Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements. and
b Net interest expense or income

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the
expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such
long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end

The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional night to defer its settlement for twelve
months after the reporting date

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contract embodying the related financial instruments

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair value through profit or loss. The classification of
financial assets at inibial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them
The Company imtially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss. transaction costs

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPI)” on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an mstrument level Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model

Effective interest method

The effective nterest method i1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest ncome or expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where

appropriate, a shorter period
(a) Financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business model whose objective 1s to hold these assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is to
hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset aive nise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income is carried at fair value through the statement of profit and loss

For financial assets maturing within one vear from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these

nstruments
Impairment of financial assets

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for financial assets measured at amortised cost and fair value through the statement of profit and loss

The Company recognises impairment loss on trade receivables using expected credit loss model, which mvolves use of provision matrix constructed on the basis
of historical credit loss experience as permitted under Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments
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For financial assets whose credit nisk has not sigmficantly mcreased since mnial recogmiuion, loss allowance equal to twelve months expecied credit losses 1s
recogmsed Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit losses 1s recogmsed if the credit nisk on the financial mstruments has sigmificantly mereased since
initial recogmition

De-recognition of financial assets

The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset

and the transfer qualifies for de-recogmtion under Ind AS 109

1f the Company neither transfers nor retans substannally all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company

smises 1ts retaned mterest in the assets and an associated hiabihty for amounts it may have to pay

rec

If the Company retains substanually all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset

and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds recerved

On de-recogmtion of a financial asset i 1ts entirety, the difference between the carrying amount measured at the date of de-recognition and the consideration

received 1s recogmised in statement of profit or loss
(b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial habilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
defimitions of a financial habihity and an equity mstrument

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial Liabilities

Financial habiliues are imuially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method where the ume value of money 1s significant. Interest bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are imitially measured at fair value and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
settlement or redemption of borrowings 1s recognised over the term of the borrowings in the statement of profit and loss.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these
instruments, g
Financial guarantee contracts -

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt mstrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a
hability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the
higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation

De-recoanmition

A financial habihity 1s derecogmised when the obligation under the hability 1s discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liabihity 1s replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms. or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification 1s
treated as the de-recognition of the original liabihity and the recognition of a new liability. The difference n the respective carrying amounts is recognised n the
statement of profit and loss

Off-setting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount 1s reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal nght to offset the
recognised amounts and there 1s an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original matunity of three months or less, that
are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to an insigmificant nisk of changes in value

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management

Cash dividend

The Company recogmses a hability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when the distribution 1s authorised and the distribution 1s no
longer at the discretion of the Company. A corresponding amount 1s recognised directly in equity. Final dividends on shares are recorded as a hability on the date
of approval by the shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a hability on the date of declaration by the Company’s Board of Directors.
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Foreign currencies
The Ind AS financial statements are presented in INR, which 1s also the Company s functional currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are imnially recorded at functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition However, for
approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction

practical reasons, the Company uses average rate if the aver

Monetary assets and habihities denominated i forengn currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date
Exchange differences ansing on settlement or translation of monetary items are recogmised n profit or loss

Non-monetary items that are measured m terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the mmial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at far value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value 1s
determined The gam or loss anising on translation of non-monetary 1tems measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gam or loss on the
change in fair value of the item (1 e.. translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI

or profit or loss, respectively)

Exchange differences arising on the retranslation or scitlement of other monetary items are included in the statement of profit and loss for the period

Government grants

Government grants are recogmsed where there 1s reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, 1t 1s recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value amounts and released to profit or loss over the
expected useful Iife in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset i.e. by equal annual instalments. Total grants received less the amounts
credited to the statement of profit and loss at the balance sheet date are included in the balance sheet

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian A ing Standards) Rules as
issued from tme to ime. On March 31. 2023. MCA amended the Companies (Indian A g Standards) A d Rules, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant
accounting policies and include corresponding amendments to IND AS 107 and IND AS 34 The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods
beginning on or after April 1, 2023 The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the financial statements

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes i Accounting Esumates and Errors - This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included
amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distnguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this
amendment 1s annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023 The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the imitial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to
equal and offsetuing temporary differences. Also there 1s corresponding amendment to IND AS 101. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual
periods beginning on or after Apnil 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statement
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GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U23201KA1997PLC032964
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Investment property

Investment property

Cost/Deemed Cost
As at April 1,2021
Additions

Disposals

As at March 31, 2022 253.49
Additions
Disposals
As at March 31, 2023 253.49

253.49

Accumulated depreciation
As at April 1, 2021
Additions

Disposals

As at March 31, 2022 5
Charge for the year
Disposals

As at March 31, 2023 -

Net book value
As at March 31, 2023 253.49
As at March 31, 2022 253.49

Notes

(a) Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment property:
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Rental income derived from investment property (Note 19). 43.38 43.38
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and 1 e) generating rental income -
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) that did not generate rental income - -
Profit/ (loss) arising from investment properties before depreciation and indirect expenses 43.38 43.38
Less: Depreciation for the year & =
Profit / (loss) arising from investment properties before indirect expenses 43.38 43.38

(b) The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment propertics and no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment properties or for
repairs, maintenance and enhancements

Fair value hierarchy disclosures for investment properties have been provided in Note 32.*

(c) Reconciliation of fair values of Investment Property: (Rs. In Lukhs)
Particulars Land

As at March 31, 2021 9,824.50
Fair value difference <)
Purchases

As at March 31, 2022 9,824.50]
Fair value difference
Purchases 2
As at March 31, 2023 9,824.50
*Government value of Land as per the external valuation report is considered as the fair value of investment property
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Power Generation Limited

Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U23201KA1997PLC032964

Notes to financial

for the vear ended March 31,2023

10

Other financial assets

Non-current bank balance (refer note 9)
Interest accrued on fixed deposits
Sccunty deposits

Accrucd Rent Income

Other receivables

Total

Inventories

Stores. spares and components (at lower of cost and net realisable valuc)
Total

Cash and cash cquivalents

Cash and cash cquivalents (refer note 37)

Balances with banks:

= On current accounts

- Deposits with original matunty of less than three months
Cash on hand

Total

Bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents

Restricied balances with bank

Amount disclosed under other non-current financial asscts (refer notc 6)
Total

Other asscts

Unsceured, considered good unless stated otherwvise
Prepaid expenses

Unsecured, considered doubtful

Advances against material and services (refer note 29)
Advances to cmployces

Less: Provision for doubtful advances

Total

Share capital

a) Authorised share capital

As at March 31,2021
Increasc / (decreasc) during the year
As at March 31,2022
Increasc / (decreasc) duning the year
As at March 31,2023

b) Issued cquity capital:
Equity shares of Rs. 10 cach issucd, subscribed and fully paid

As at March 31,2021
Changes during the ycar
As at March 31,2022
Changes during the year
As at March 31,2023

©) Issued preference share capital

As at March 31,2021
Changes during the year
As at March 31,2022
Changes dunng the year
As at March 31,2023

d) Terms/ rights attached to equity sha

The Company has only one class of cquity shares having par valuc of Rs 10 per share Every member holding cquity shares therein shall lune vot

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Non current

Current

March 31,2023

March 31,2022

March 31,2023

March 31, 2022

25.19 25:19 - -

z = 028 014
24068 2408 N s
1986 1364 353
69.73 63.51 3.67

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Current

March 31,2022

77.16

7116

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Current

March 31,2023

March 31, 2022

1194 4813
- 2334
012 092
12,06 72.39
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Non current Current
March 31, 2022 March 31,2023 March 31,2022
2519
.19 - =
2519 (25.19) > =
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Current

March 31. 2023

March 31.2022

1223 1429
136.09 18.26

386 347
20218 60.30

Equity Shares

Preference Shares

Number (Rs. In Lakhs) Number (Rs. In Lakhs)
300.000.000 30,000 00 30,000 S0.000 00
300.000.000 30.000.00 30.000 30.000.00
300,000,000 30.000 00 000 30.000 00

Number (Rs. In Lakhs)
274.500.140 2743001
274,500,140 2745001
274,300,130 27 430,01

Compulsorily com ertible preference

h:

ares

Numher

(Rs. In Lakhs)

30.000

30.000 00

30,000

50.000 .00

S0.000.00

s 1 proportion to member's share of the

paid up cquity share capital. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of directors is subject to the approval of the sharcholders 1n ensuing

In the cvent of the liquidation of the Company. the holders of cquity shares would be entitled to receive remaining asscts of the Company. after distribution of all preferential amounts The

distribution will be in proportion fo the number of cquity shares held by the sharcholders.
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siri Power Generation 1
¢ Ldentity Number (CIN)

¢) Terms/ rights attached 1o CCPS

C
of fift

1years from the date of onginal is

uc or at ime before the sind expiy of fificen years at the option of the Company

peiates.

1) Shares helid by holding / ultimate holdi
Out of slues 1ssucd by the Company. shares held by s Holding Company. Ulimiie Holdi

ompany / holding company and / or their subsidia / as:
Company and thair subsidiancs/ associates are as below

arc for a tenure of fificen years and camy a dividend 2 0 001% per annum (pa ) Each CCPS shall be comvericd mito 10,000 Equity Sharc of Rs 10 cach of the Company ai par at the expin

Particulars March 31,2023

March 31.2022

GEL. the Holding Compam * 27.430.01
274200140 (March 31,2021 274500, 140) cquuty shares of Rs 10 cach fully pad

GEL. the Holdmg Company 30.000 00
30.000 (March 31,2021 50,000) CCPS of Rs 100,000 cach fully pad

* 6 shares arc held by the nonunees of GEL

27435001

50.000 00

2) Details of sharcholders holding more than 3% equity shares in the Company

o ” March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Particulars = =
Number % holding Number Yo holding
Equity shares of Rs. 10 cach fully paid
GELI 274.500.140 100.00%| 274500140 100 00%|
CCPS of Rs. 100,000 each issucd and fully paid
GEL 50.000 100.00% 50.000 100.00%)]

As per records of the Company. including its ter of sharcholders / members and other declartion received from sharcholders regarding beneficial interest. the abov
Iegal and beneficial ownership of sharcs.

I 6 shares arc held by the nominces of GEL

h) Shares reserved for issue under options
For detals of sharcs reserved for issue on conversion of CCPS. please refer note 12(c).

¢ sharcholding represent both

Other cquity
March 31,2023
12(a) (i) Capital contribution from parent / related parties (Equity component of CRPS)
Balance at the beginning of the year 9.845.94 9.845 94
Balance at the end of the Period 9,845.94 9.845.94
March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022
12(b) (i) CCPS
Balance at the beginning of the year 50.000.00 50.000.00
Balance at the end of the Period 30,000.00 30,000.00
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
12(c) (i) Capital contribution from parent - Interest free loan
Balance at the begmming of the year 8.211.69 7.28035
Adjustment (+/-) (32.00) -
cs during the year 789.56 93134
Balance at the end of the Period 8,949.25 8.211.69
Total (i+i+iii) 68,795.19 68,057.63
12(d)  Sccurities premium
Balance at the beginning and cnd of the year 199.99 19999
) Retained carnings
Balance at the beginming of the year (83.531.59) (76.465.25)
Adjustment (+/-) 1.103.68 -
Less: profit / (loss) for the ycar (6.364.26) (7.038.66)
Less® Re-mcasurement (losses) ns on defined benefit plans (18.12) (7.68)
Balance at the end of the year (88,810.29) (83.531.39)
Total 12 ("¢)+(d)+("c) (19.815.11) 115.273.97)
Borrowings (Rs. In Lakhs)
Current
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Loans (unsecured, at amortised cost) (refer note 30)
Loans from GMR Power Corporation Limited (GPCL) * - 13901
Loans from GMR Gencration Assct Limited (‘GGAL") ** 39454 18332
39434 34233
Asgregpate Sccured borrowngs - -
Asgregate Unscecured borrowings 39454 34233
Trade Payables (Rs. In Lakhs)
Current
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Total 12 duc to micro and small i 12934 12170
Total owtstanding duc 1o creditors other than sucro enterprises and small enterpriscs.
1) Tradc payables 3,404 70
n) Trade pavables to related partics (refer note 30) 91588

Total 4.449.92

6.940.88




GMR Vemauiri Power
Corporate ldentity Nu
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(CIN): U23200KA199TPLC032904
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Nutes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31. 2023

3

17(a)

17(h)

iblc amounts for delayed payments 1o
ends.

¢ no overdue prncipal amounts/nterest pa
Development Act. 2006 ('MSMED Act’) as at yci

I Bascd on mformanon avalable with the Company . ther
medium enterpnses under The Small and Medium Enterpnis
2 Tenms and condimions of the above fimancial habihucs

- Trade payables are non-inte
= For explanations on the Compam s credit nsk management processes. refer note 33 (¢)

st beanng

- The dues to rclated parties are unsccuied
3 Agang of Trade Payable

supplicrs which arc registered as micro. snuill or

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments* |

Particulars l Total
! Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years |
As at 31 March 2023
MSME 5.07 081 0.80 122.66 129.34
Creditors other than MSME 191.09 - » 3.215.61 340470
Pavable to Related Partics 55113 - - 36475 915.88
Acceptances agamst fucl supphes - - - - -
TOTAL 747.29 0.81 0.80 3,701.02 4.449.92
As at 31 March 2022
MSME 27.16 2182 - 72.73 12170
Creditors other than MSME 265541 1.672.38 633.83 1.067.30 6.028.93
Payable to Related Parties 191 63 - 150.89 44772 7910
against fuel supplies - - - - -
TOTAL 2.874.20 784.73 1,587.75 6.940.88
Other financial lial (Rs. In Lakhs)
Current
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
117.03
1.505.39
37.99
Other pavables 7471.85 7.191.67
Total 9.132.26 8.447.63
Other liabilities (Rs. In Lakhs)
Current
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Uncamed revenue 2.750.53 27
Statutory liabilitics - 4499
Total 2,750.53 2,7
Net employee defined benefit liabilitics (Rs. In Lakhs)
Non current Current
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Provision for compensated abscnces 3395 - - -
Provision for grannty (refer note 28) 1284 - - 138
Total 66.79 - - 1.58
Provisions (Rs.In
Current
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Provision for operation and manicnance (refer note 36) 335240 122918
Provision for compensated absences 947 3703
Total 3.361.87 1,286.21
Government grants (Rs. In Lakhs)
Non current Current
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Government grants (refer note $(a)) 1.405.30 1.662.09 256.75 2;
Total 140330 1.662.09 256.75 25
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
if the Period 1.918 84 2.175.63
Recenved dunng the penod - -
Released to the statement of profit and loss (236.80) 1236.80)
As at the end of the Period 1.662.04 1.918.84




GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U23201KA1997PLC032964
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2023

19 Revenue from operations (Rs. In Lakhs)
Other operating revenue:* March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Land lease rental 43.38 433
Rental towards Facilities 72.30 72.30
Total 115.68 115.68
20 Other income (Rs. In Lakhs)
March 31,2023  March 31,2022
Government grants (refer note 18) 256.80 256.80
Miscellancous income 800.46 64.40
Interest income on
- Bank deposits 323 332
- Others - -
Total 1,060.51 324.52
21  Employee benefit expenses (Rs. In Lakhs)
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Salaries, wages and bonus 34247 372.72
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 28) 34.17 28.18
Gratuity expenses (refer note 28) (14.04) 15.22
Staff welfare expenses 4.05 0.72
Total 366.65 416.84
22 Finance costs (Rs. In Lakhs)
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Interest expenses 841.21 833.49
Bank charges 0.98 924
Total 842.19 842.73
23 Depreciation and amortisation expenses (Rs. In Lakhs)
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 243 2.69
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 3) 4.524.66 4,560.18
Total 4,527.09 4,562.87
24 Other expenses (Rs. In Lakhs)
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Electricity and water charges 391.39 390.62
Rent 3.60 4.76
Rates and taxes 70.84 72.06
Insurance 74.08 118.74
Repairs and maintenance 5933 55.28
Security expenses - 37.99
Travelling and conveyance 253 1.58
Legal and professional fees 336.04 411.25
Payment to auditors 3.02 10.18
Exchange differences (net) 237.21 33.50
Miscellaneous expenses 7.07 6.17
Total 1,185.11 1,142.13

Payment to auditors (including goods and service tax / service tax)
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022

As auditor :

Audit fees 59 59

Reimbursement of expenses - =

Total 5.90 5.90
25  Income Tax

The Company has no taxable income for the period ended ended March 31. 2023 and financial year ended March 31, 2022,
accordingly. no current tax expense has been recorded

The Company has significant carry forward unused tax losses. Since 1t 1s not probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences can be unlised. no deferred 1ax asset has been recognised in the financial statements for

the unused carry forward tax losses and the taxable losses for the year



GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U23201KA1997PLC032964
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2023

26 Earnings Per Share ('EPS")
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/ loss for the year atributable to equity sharcholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they were entitled to participate in dividends
relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such
as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue. share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding,

without a corresponding change in resources
Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity sharcholders (after adjusting for interest on the convertible securities) by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive

potential equity shares into equity shares

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Face value per share (Rs. Per share) 10 10
Weighted Average number of equity shares used for computing EPS (Basic and Diluted) 274,500,140 274,500,140
(Loss) / profit for the year (after tax) (Rs. in Lakhs) (6,364.26) (7.058.66)
(Loss) / profit attributable to equity share holders (Rs. in Lakhs) (6,364.26) (7.058.66)
EPS - Basic and diluted (Rs. per share) (2.32) (2.57)

Considering that the Company has incurred losses during the year ended March 31. 2023 and March 31, 2022, the allotment of conversion option in case of CCPS
would decrease the loss per share for the year (anti-dilutive) and accordingly has been ignored for the purpose of calculation of diluted eamings per share.




GMR V

emagiri Power Generation Limited

Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U23201KA1997PLC032964
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

27 Related

Party transactions

a) Names of related parties and description of relationship

SI No.

Description of relationship

Name of the related parties

(1)

Enterprises that control the Company

GMR Energy Limited (*GEL"). the Holding Company

(1)

The enterprises that jointly control the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries and jont ventures /
assoctates where transactions have taken place during
the year

GMR Enterprises Private Limited ('GEPL)

GMR Power and Urban Infra Lumited (*GPUIL")
GMR Energy Limited (‘GEL")

GMR Rajahmundry Energy Limited (‘GREL’)
GMR Generation Assets Limited (GGAL')

GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited ('GHIAL')
GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited ('GKEL')

Delhi International Airport Limited ('DIALY)

GMR Airports Infrastructure Limited (*GIL)

Raxa Security Services Limited ("RSSL")

GMR Varalakshmi Foundation (GVF)

GMR Corporate Affairs Private Limited (|GCAPL")

(1i1)

Fellow subsidiaries where tr; ons have taken

place during the year

GMR Warora Energy Limited (GWEL")

(iv)

Key managerial personnel and their relatives

Mr. Sanjay Narayan Barde - Director (Appointed w.e.f. 08/05/2015)

M

r. Nikhil Dujari - Director (Appointed w.e.f: 21/06/2021)

Mr, Mohan Sivaraman - Director (Appointed w.e.f. 02/08/2021)
Mrs. Sridevi Venisheety - Director (Appointed w.e.f 26/07/2022)

Mr. Nirjhar Sarkar - Director (Resigned w.e.t' 21/06/2021)

Mr. Gopal Rao M - Director - Director (Resigned w.e.f. 16/08/2021)

Mr. Mathews P — Manager

Mr. Ramana Murthy P- Chief Financial Officer (Appointed w.e.f. 12/07/2019)

Ms. Nidhi Chandok — Company Secretary
Mrs. B Ramadevi - Relative

b) Summary of transactions and outstanding balances with the above related parties is as follows

Particulars

Year ended

Year ended

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

i. Capital contribution from parent - Interest free loan

Transaction with GEL
- ICD from GEL

ii. Short term borrowings - Unsecured
a) Transaction with GGAL
- Interest on ICD

b) Transaction with GPCL
- Interest on ICD

iii. Land lease rental
- GREL

iv. Rental towards facilities
- GREL

v. Other expenses
- GHAIL
- GEPL

vi. Legal and professional fees (cross charges)
- GPUIL
-GIL

vii. Repairs and maintenance
- DIAL

viii. Security expenses
-RSSL

789.56

4.67

72.30

101.85

37.99.




GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited

Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U23201KA1997PLC032964
Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

ix. Outstanding balance at the year end March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
a) Short term borrowings - Unsecured
- GGAL (Including Earstwhile GPCL) 394 54 39434
b) Contribution from parent (refer note 12(a))
-GEL
- Equity component of CRPS 9.843.94 0.845.94
- CCPS 50.000.00 50,000.00
- Securities Premium 199.99 199.99
- Interest free loan 8.949 25 8.211.69
¢) Non-trade payables - Current
- GREL 566.29 693.95
d) Trade payables - Current
- GIL 399.83 32241
- GPUIL 14948 101.85
-RSSL 121.70 121.70
- DIAL 338.09 337.97
-GVF 15.34 16.88
- GGAL 3.40 1.44
- others 9.75 9.70
e) Other financial asset - Current
- GKEL 354 -
- GREL - -
f) Other financial asset - Non-current
- GREL - -
f) Advances against material and services - Current
- GEPL - 0.68
2) Interest accrued on borrowings
- GGAL (Including earstwhile GPCL) 117.03 81.20
Remuneration paid to Key Managerial Personnel
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Details of Key M. ial Personnel 't ter S
etails of Key Managerial Personnel Short term Sitting fees Short term ) Siicine:fees
employee benefits employee benefits =
a) Mr. Mathews P — Manager 66.61 - 76.02 -
b) Ms. Nidhi Chandhok — Company secretary 10.72 - 10.12 -
c) Mr. Ramana Murthy P 24.53 - 26.68 -

Notes:

(1) Refer note 36 with respect to creation of first ranking pari passu charge on the fixed assets and on the excess cash flows of the Company
(i1) Refer note 4 for the details of land given on operating lease to certain related parties.
(1i1) The remuneration to the key managerial personnel does not include the provisions for gratuity and leave benefits. as they are determined

on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole.

(1v) The above information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the

Company




GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U23201KA1997PLC032964

Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

28 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements. estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of
revenues, expenses, assets and habilities. and the accompanying disclosures. and the disclosure of contingent Labilities. Actual results could differ from those
estumates. Esumates and underlying assumpuions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estmates could result in outcomes that
require a matenial adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or habilities affected i future periods.

The esumate and the underlyig assumpuions are reviewed on an ongomng basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised m the period m which are esumate
is revised and future periods attected

Significant judgements and the esumates relating to the carrying values of assets and liabilities include provision for employee benefits and other provisions.
cc its and contingencies and determination of carrymg value of intangible assets including assets accounted under service concession arrangement

A. Judgements
In the process of applym
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

the Company’s accounting policies. management has made the following judgements, which have the most sigmificant effect on the

(i) Service concession arrangements
The Company has considered the PPA entered into by 1t as concession arrangement as per Appendix A of " Service Concession Arrangements” under Ind AS 11, For
details, refer note 2.2 (c).

(ii) Going concern assessment

Though the Company has ceased operations since September 2016 on account of unavailability of adequate supply of natural gas and is dependent on the Parent
Company to provide support to service its operational expenditure and repay its liabilities, the management is confident of establishing profitable operations m the
immediate future and continues to prepare its financial statements on a going concern basis.

Refer note 2.1 and note 33 for further details.

B. Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date. that have a significant risk of causing a matenial
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and habilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances ansing that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, including legal and contractual claims. By their
nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum.
of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of sigmficant judgement and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events. In respect of financial
guarantees provided by the Company to third parties and other contingent liabilities referred in note 29, the Company considers that it 1s more likely than not that
such an amount will not be payable. Refer note 29 for further disclosure. Further, the Company has considered certain claims as detailed in note 34 in the future
cashflows for the assessment of the appropriateness of the carrying value of its intangible and other assets as at March 31, 2022

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and
mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved n the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the
interest rates of government bonds.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for India. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes
Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates. Refer note 28 for further disclosures.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions. conducted at arm’s length. for
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation 1s based on a DCF model In calculating value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the nisks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. The recoverable amount 1s
sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.
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29 a) Gratuity and other post employment plans

Contribution to provident and other funds included under employee benefit expense (note 21) are as below (Rs. In Lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Provident and pension fund 2399 16 99
Supcrannuation fund 10.19 1120
Total 34.17 28.18

b) Defined benefit plan

atuity plan. The gratuity plan 1s govemed by the Payment of Gratuity Act. 1972 Under the act. every employee who has completed
five years o1 more of service ratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for cach completed year of service: The level of benefits provided depends on the
member's length of senvice and salany at retirement age. The scheme is funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India in the form of a qualifying insurance policy

The Company has a defined bencfi

The followmyg tables summanse the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status and amounts recogmised m the
balance sheet for gratwnty benefit

i. Net employee benefit expenses (recognised as "Employee benefit expenses' (note 21)): (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current senvice cost 37 483
Net nterest cost on defined benefit obl / (asscts) (0.24) (1.06)
Cost recognised in the statement of profit or loss 351 3.77
ii. Remeasurement (gains) / loss recognised in other comprehensive income: (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Actuanial (zam)/ loss on oblizations duc to defined benefit obligations expericnce 18.59 701
Actuaral (gam)/ loss on obl 1ons duc to defined benefit obligations assumption changes (0.82) (113)
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising during the year 17.77 5.86
Retumn on plan asscts (lesser)/ greater than discount raie (0.23) 182
Actuarial loss / (2ain) recognised in OCI 17.54 7.68
Balance sheet

iii. Net defined benefit asset/ (liability): (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Defined benefit oblization 85.92 62.10
Fairvalue of plan 1 73.08 60.52
Plan asset / (liability) (12.84) (1.58)
iv. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opcning defincd benefit obligation 62.10 63.21
Interest cost 4.34 383
Current service cost 3.75 483
Acquisition adjustments = =
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations duc to defined benefit obligations cxpericnee 18.59 7.01
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on oblizations duc to defined benefit obligations assumption changes (0.82) (1.15)
Benefits paid (2.04) (17.63)
Closing defined benefit obligation 85.92 62.10
v. Changes in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows: (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opcning fair value of plan asscts 60.52 86.53
Expected return on plan assct 437 490
Acquisition adjustment - (13.01)
Contnibution to the fund 9.80 155
Retum on plan asscts (lesser)/ greater than discount rate 023 (182)
Bencfits paid (2.04) (17.63)
Closing fair value of plan assets 73.08 60.52

The Company expects to contribute Rs. 10 lakhs (March 31, 2022: Nil lakhs) towards gratuity fund during the vear April 01, 2022 to March 31. 2023

vi. The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

[Particulars [ March31,2023 | March31,2022 |
|

[Investments with insurcr 100% 100%

vii. The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligation for the Company's plans are shown below:

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discount rate (in %) 7.30% 710%
Salany Escalation (in %) 6.00% 6.00%
Attntion rate (in %4) 5.00% 5.00%
Mortaliy rate Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives|
Mortality (2006-08) Mortahty (2006-08)
(modificd) Ult (modified) Ult
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Note:
1 Plan asscts arc full represented by balance with the Life Insurance Corperation of India

2 The expected retum on plan asscts 1s determined considenng several applicable factors mamly the composition of the plan asscts held. assessed nsks of asset man:

Iistonical results of the returm on plan asscts and the Company's policy for plan assct management

3. The esumates of future salan mcrcase n compensation levels. considered i actuanal valuation. take account of mflation. scmiority. promotion and other rel

such as supply and demand m the employment market
4. Plan Characteristics and Associated Risks

cvant factors.

The Gratuity scheme 1s a Defined Bencefit Plan that provides for a lump sum payment made on exit either by way of retrement. death or disability. The benefits are defined
on the basis of final salary and the penod of senvice and pard as lump sum at exit. The Plan desizn means the nisks commonly affccting the habihitics and the financial results

are expeeted to be
a. Discount rate nisk © The defined benefit obhigation caleulated uses

mcrease
b Salary Inflavion risk - Higher than expected mercases i salany will mcrease the defined bencfit obligation

¢. Demographic ni: This 1s the nsk of varabilty of res

cffeet of these decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not stra

a discount rate based on government bonds. 1t bond yields fall. the defined benefit obligation will tend to

s duc to unsystemanie nature of decrements that include mortahty. withdrawal, disability and retirement. The
it formard and depends upon the combimnation of salary merease, discount rate and vesting critena. It

is important not to overstate withdrawals because i the financial analy sis the retiiement benefit of a short carcer employce typically costs less per year as compared to a long

service employee

viii. A quantitative sens

ity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are as shown below:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discount rate

Impact on defined bencfit obligation duc to 1% increase in discount rate (3.85) (3.36)
Impact on defined benefit obligation duc to 1% decrease in discount rate 4.29 4.00
Attrition rate

Impact on defined benefit obligation duc to 1% ncrease in attnition rate 3.04 298
Impact on defined benefit obligation duc to 1% decrease i attntion rate (2.83) (2.72)
Salary escalation rate

Impact on defined benefit obligation duc to 1% increase in salary escalation rate 0.44 0.37
Impact on defincd bencfit obligation duc to 1% decrease m salan escalation rate (0.48) (0.40)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determmed based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obll as a result of ble changes in key
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting penod

ix. The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years: (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2023
March 31. 2024 9.03
March 31. 2025 9.58
March 31. 2026 40.08
March 31. 2027 341
March 31. 2028 3.70
March 31. 2029 to March 31. 2033 3145
The average duration of the defined benefit plan obhgation at the ¢nd of the reporting period 1s 10 years (March 31, 20220 10 years).
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Commitments and Contingencies

A. Contingent Liabilities (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Custom duty demands (refer note a below) 5.910.57 5.910.57
Electricity duty demand (refer note b below) 6.310.61 6.310.61
Bank Guarantee 22.10 22.10
Total 12,243.28 12,243.28

a) During the year ended March 31. 2010, the Company was granted a refund of Custom duty of rs. 6909.58 lakhs which was paid earlier towards the import of plant and
machiery. Subsequently. the Company received a refund of Rs 5.910.57 lakhs.

During the year ended March 31. 2011, the Company received an intimation from the Office of the Joint Director General of Foreign Trade (DGFT) for cancellation of duty
drawack and refund order received in 2009-10 to the extent of the unpaid amount of Rs. 999.01 lakhs.

During the year ended March 31. 2012, the Company received a further intimation from DGFT for cancellation of duty drawback rufund order of Rs 5.910.57 lakhs received in
2009-10. thereby seeking refund of the amunt the Company received earlier. Based on an expert's opinion the management is confident that the duty drawback refund granted
earlier was appropriate and that the cancellation of the duty drawback refund iis not tenable. Accordingly. no adjustment has been made with regard to the refund of Rs 5.910.57
lakhs already received by the Company in the financial statements of the Company.

The Company has filed a writ petition with the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi in November 2011, During the year ended March 31, 2015. the matter has been transferred to Hob'ble
Supreme Court of India and will be concluded along with other similar cases and is pending finalisation as at December 31. 2020.

The company considers Rs 5.910.57 lakhs as government grant received as per Ind AS 20 - 'Accounting for Government Grants disclosure of Government Assistance’ and
recognises the same as income on a straight line basis in the Statement of Profit and loss over the concession period.

b) During the year ended March 31, 2012, the Company had received a demand of Rs. 4,821.39 lakhs for the period September 2006 to November 2011 from the Chief Electrical
Inspectorate. Government of Andhra Pradesh (‘GoAP’), whereby GoAP has imposed electricity duty on generation and sale of electrical energy calculated at the rate of six paise
for each electricity unit generated by the Company since commencement of commercial operations. Based on an internal assessment and an expert opinion. the management is
confident that the provisions of Electricity Duty Act and Rules, 1939 in respect of payment of electricity duty are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly. electricity duty
liability of Rs. 6,310.61 lakhs (March 31, 2021: Rs. 6,310.61 lakhs) for the period September 2006 to March 2019 has been considered as a contingent liability.

¢) The Company has trade payables (including interest) amounting to Rs. 866.88 lakhs as at March 31, 2023 towards purchase of services outstanding beyond three years as at the
year end. As per the Master Direction - External Commercial Borrowings, Trade credits and Structured Obligations dated March 26, 2019 issued by the Reserve Bank of India ('the
RBI') such trade credits outstanding beyond three years are considered as External Commercial Borrowings. The Company has submitted an application to its Authorised Dealer for
obtaining an approval from RBI to make the payment and is currently awaiting RBI's approval.

The management is in the process of regularising these overdue payables and is confident that required approvals would be received and penalties. if any that may be imposed on
the Company would not be material. Accordingly. no adjustments have been made by the management in these financial statements in this regard.

d) The aforesaid amounts under dispute are as per the demands from regulatory authorities for the period and has not been adjusted to include further interest and penalty leviable.
if any. at the time of final outcome of the appeals.

€) There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on Provident Fund dated February 28, 2019. As a matter of caution. the Company has
made a provision on a prospective basis from the date of the SC order. The Company will update its provision, on receiving further clarity on the subject

Others
A search under Section 132 of the IT Act was carried out at the premises of the Company by the Income Tax Authorities on October 11. 2012. subsequently followed by search

closure visits on various dates. to check the compliance with the provisions of the IT Act. The Income Tax Department has subsequently sought certain information/clarifications.
The Company has not received any show cause notice/demand from the Income Tax Authorities. The management of the Company believes that it has complied with all the
applicable provisions of the IT Act with respect to its operations.

Capital and other ¢ ts

S. No. Type of agreement Period of agreement Details of ¢ itments

1 Power  Purchase  Agreement  and|23 years from Commercial Operation Date (‘COD’) (i.e.|[The Company has committed to sell and the DISCOMS have
committed to purchase all available capacity of the project limited to

the installed capacity of 370 MW.

subsequent amendments thereto September 16. 2006).

The Company has committed to provide availability declaration of at
least 80% Plant Load Factor ("PLF’) over a period of tariff year. as
defined in the PPA. to DISCOMS. Failure by the Company to make
the plant available for the committed PLF will reduce the
consideration for the sale of energy as well as attract disincentives.

2 Long Term Assured Parts Supply|41 years from date of agreement. i.e. December 29, 2003|The Company has committed to pay variable charges on a quarterly /
Agreement and amendments thereto or 120.000 factored fired hours whichever is earlier. milestone basis. based on the actual fired hours of the plant
3 Long Term Maintenance Agreement and|41] years from date of agreement. i.e. December 29, 2003|The Company has committed to pay fixed quarterly charges in

amendments thereto or 120,000 factored fired hours whichever is earlier. addition to variable quarterly charges. which are based on the actual
fired hours of the plant. Further. the Company has committed to pay
incentives on attainment of certain parameters by the sub-contractor.
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31 Segment Information

The Company has only one reportable business segment. which is generation and supply of power and operates only m India. There are no customers / asscets
that are located outside India

32 Disclosures on Financial instruments

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides addinional mformation on balance shecet items that

contamn financial instruments.

The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition. the basis of measurement and the basis on which mcome and expenses are
recognised in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in accounting policies to the financial statements

(a) Financial assets and liabilities

The following tables presents the carrying value and fair value of each category of financial assets and habilities (Rs. in lakhs)

Fair Value
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2021

Carrying Value
March 31,2023 | March 31,2021

Particulars

Financial assets
At Amortised cost

Cash and cash equivalents 12.06 72.39 12.06 72.39
Other financial assets 92 .60 67.18 92.60 67.18
Total 104.66 139.57 104.66 139.57

Financial liabilities
At Amortised cost

Borrowings 39434 34233 394.34 34233
Trade payables 4,449.92 6.940.88 4.449.92 6.940.88
Others financial liabilities 9.,132.26 8.447.63 9,132.26 8,447.63
Total 13,976.52 15,730.84 13,976.52 15,730.84
Ther gement d the other fi ial liabilities, borrowings, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets approximate their

carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.
Assumptions used in estimating fair value: The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

(b) Fair value hierarchy

Quoted prices in an active market (Level 1): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This category consists of investment in quoted equity shares, and mutual fund investments.

Valuation techniques with observable inputs (Level 2): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and habilities, measured using inputs other than
quoted prices included within Level I that are observable for the asset or liability. either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs (Level 3): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and labilities measured using inputs
that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determmed in whole or in part, using a valuation model based on
assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market
data.

The Company do not have any Level 1 and Level 2 financial assets / liabilities as at March 31, 2022, and March 31, 2021. Further, there have been no transfers
benween Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year.
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33 Capital management

The Company’s capital management 1s intended to create value for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of long term and short term goals of the Company

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business plan coupled with long term and short term strategic mvestment and expansion plans
The funding needs are met thiough equity, cash generated from operations, long term and short term bank borrowings

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, CCPS, capital contribution from parent company in the form of interest free loan,
equity component of CRPS, securities premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company

To maintam or adjust the capital structure. the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders. return capital to sharcholders or 1ssue new shares The Company
monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by total capital plus total debt The Company’s policy 1s to keep the gearing ratio at an opiimum level to ensure

that the debt related covenant are complied with

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Borrowings 39434 34233
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 8) (12.06) (72.39)
Total debt (i) 382.28 269.94
Capital Component

Equity share capital 2745001 27,450.01
Caputal contribution from parent / related parties (Equity component of CRPS) 9,845 94 9,845.94
Compulsonly Convertible Preference Share ('CCPS') Capital 50,000 00 50,000.00
Capital contribution from parent - Interest free loan 8.949.25 8,211.69
Securities premium 199.99 199.99
Retained earnings (88,810.29) (83,531.59)
Total Capital (ii) 7,634.90 12,176.04
Capital and borrowing (iii =i+ii) 8.017.18 12,445.98
Gearing ratio % (i/iii) 4.77% 2.17%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022
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Financial risk management objecrives and policies

currency exchange rates. interest rates. hquidity and credn nisk. which

In the course of its business. the Company 1s exposed primarily to fluctuations in fore;
may adversely impact the fair value of its financial instruments. The Company has a risk management policy which not only covers the foreign exchange nisks
but also other nisks associated with the financial assets and liabilities such as interest rate risks and credit risks. The risk management framework aims 1o

(1) create a stable business planning environment by reducimg the impact of currency and interest rate fluctuations on the Company’s business plan
(11) achieve greater predictability to earnings by determining the financial value of the expected earnings n advance

Market risk

Market nisk 1s the risk of any loss in future camings, in realisable fair values or in future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial
instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in interest rates. foreign currency exchange rates. equity price fluctuations.
liquidity and other market changes. Future specific market movements cannot be normally predicted with reasonable accuracy.

(a) Market risk - Interest rate risk

Interest rate nisk is the nisk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial nstrument will flucmate because of changes in market interest rates The
Company manages its interest rate risk by having only fixed rate loans and borrowings.

(b) Market risk- Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities.

Foreign currency sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the
Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. The Company’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all
other currencies is not material

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Change in USD rate | Effect on profit before tax
March 31, 2023 5% (167.62)
5% 167.62
March 31, 2022 5% (116.08)
-5% 116.08
Credit risk

Credit risk 1s the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss

The carrying value of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk 1s Rs. 104.66 lakhs and Rs. 139 57 lakhs, as at
March 31. 2023 and March 31, 2022 respectively, being the total carrying value of balances with bank. bank deposits, loans and other financial assets

Customer credit risk is managed subject to the Company’s established policy. procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. An
impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date. The Company does not hold collateral as security.

Credit nisk from balances with bank and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s pohcy
Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The limits are set to minimise
the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds on a regular basis. The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility. The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low.

The Company relies on Group companies for source of funding and debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders
) p P £ 2 £

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments

Due within 1 year Due between 1 to 5 years | Due after 5 years Total
Year ended
March 31, 2023
Borrowings 394.34 - - 394534
Other financial habilties 9.132.26 - - 9.132.26
Trade and other payables 4,449.92 - - 4,449 92
13,976.52 - - 13,976.52
Year ended
March 31, 2022
Borrowings 342.33 - - 34233
Other financial habilines 8.447.63 - - 8.447.63
Trade and other payables 6.940.88 - - 6.940.88
15,730.84 - - 15,730.84
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GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U23201KA1997PLC032964
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

36 In view of lower supplies / availability of natural gas to the power generating companies in India, the Company is facing shortage of natural gas supply. As a result. the Company
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®

had not generated and sold electrical energy since May 2013 till March 31. 2015. The Company had emerged as a successful bidder in the auction process organised by the
Ministry of Power and operated on an intermittent basis from August 2015 till September 2016. The Company has not been operational since September 2016. The Company
has incurred net loss of Rs. 6.382.38 lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2023 ( March 31, 2022: Rs. 7.066.34 lakhs) and has accumulated losses of Rs 88.810.29 lakhs as at
March 31. 2023 (March 31. 2022: Rs. 83.531.59 lakhs) and its current liabilities exceeded its current assets as at March 31. 2023 by Rs. 20.091.21 lakhs (March 31. 2022: Rs.
19.878.99 lakhs) primarily because of the aforesaid shortage of natural gas supply

Further, the Company had filed petition claiming losses of Rs. 44,700.00 lakhs pertaining to capacity charges for loss of revenue on account of unavailability of the fuel during
the period 2006 and 2008. excluding interest, and based on legal opinion is confident of recovery of such claims. During the yvear ended March 31, 2019, the Honourable High
Court of Andhra Pradesh passed its judgement and held that the CERC has the jurisdiction to adjudicate the aforesaid claims of the Company. During the vear ended March 31,
2020, the APDISCOM s appealed agamst the aforesaid judgement before the Honourable Supreme Court. The Supreme Court vide 1ts order dated February 4. 2020 dismissed
the aforesaid petition of the DISCOMs and held that CERC will have jurisdiction to adjudicate the disputes in the present case and directed CERC to dispose off the petition
filed before it within six months. The matter is pending to be heard before the CERC as at March 31, 2022.

Additionally, during the year ended March 31, 2020, in case of GVPGL's litigation with APDISCOMs, wherein APDISCOMS refused to accept declaration of capacity
availability on the basis of deep water gas citing that natural gas for the purpose of PPA does not include Deep Water Gas and consequent refusal to schedule power from the
Company and pay applicable tariff including capacity charges, CERC has passed order dated January 28, 2020, declaring that natural gas for the purpose of PPA includes Deep
Water Gas from domestic sources. Accordingly, the Company is entitled to claim capacity charges from APDISCOMs from November 2016 based on availability declaration for
generation of power on the basis of deep water gas, along with late payment surcharge.

The Company has calculated a claim amount of Rs. 74,131.34 lakhs for the period from November 2016 till February 2020. As on the balance sheet date, the Company has not
received any of the aforesaid claims and is confident of recovery of such claims in the future based on the CERC Order.

The management is evaluating various approaches / alternatives to deal with the situation and is confident that Government of India (‘'Gol’) would take further necessary steps /
initiatives in this regard to improve the situation regarding availability of natural gas from alternate sources in the foreseeable future. The management has also carried out a
valuation assessment of the Company during the year ended March 31, 2020 which includes certain assumptions relating to availability and pricing of domestic and imported
gas, future tanff, realization of claims for losses incurred in earlier periods from the customer as detailed below and other operating parameters which it believes. reasonably
reflect the future expectations from the project. The management of the Company will monitor these aspects closely and take actions as are considered appropriate and is
confident that it will be able to generate sufficient profits in future years and meet its financial obligations as they arise.

Based on the aforementioned reasons, business plans, legal opinion and a valuation assessment carried out by an external expert, the management of the Company considers that
the carrying value of the intangible and other assets and going concern assumption as at March 31, 2023 is appropriate and accordingly the financial statements of the Company
do not include any adjustment that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. In the meantime, the parent company has committed to provide necessary support to the
Company as may be required for the continuance of its normal business operations.

Also refer note 3, 4 and 13.

Provisions

Provision for incentives for operation and maintenance contract
(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance 1,229.18 1,124.02
Additions during the vear (inclusive of exchange differences) 34.12 105.16
Write back during the year - -
Closing balance * 1,263.30 1,229.18

During the year ended March 31, 2017, GWEL a fellow subsidiary has availed borrowings from ICICI Bank Limited, pursuant to which a first ranking pan passu charge on the
immovable properties (excluding investment properties) and on the excess cash flows of the Company has been created.

39 Certain amounts (currency value or percentages) shown in the various tables and paragraphs included in the financial statements have been rounded off or truncated as deemed

appropriate by the management of the Company.

40 Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified, wherever necessary, to conform to the current year's classification.
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